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Whitney M. Young Jr. Information Resource Center of the Public Affairs Section, U.S. Consulate General has compiled the following articles for your reading pleasure. Please feel free to request any of them from our staff or just copy the respective web address and download the article from the Internet. 

Background Issues

Political Parties in the United States By John F. Bibby  http://usinfo.state.gov/products/pubs/ election04/parties.htm  “When the Founders of the American Republic wrote the U.S. Constitution in 1787, they did not envision a role for political parties in the governmental order. Indeed, they sought through various constitutional arrangements — such as separation of powers, checks and balances, federalism, and indirect election of the president by an electoral college — to insulate the new republic from political parties and factions...”

Presidential Nominations and American Democracy By Stephen J. Wayne http://usinfo.state.gov/products/pubs/ election04/nominate.htm  The system for nominating candidates for the U.S. presidency looks complex, even chaotic, and it is. “Ever since the 1970s when the Democratic and Republican parties began to reform the rules for selecting their presidential and vice presidential nominees, the system has been in a state of flux, with the most successful candidates being those who understand the complexities and can maneuver in and around them. But after all, that is what creative politicians do — learn the game of politics and play it hard and skillfully…”

U.S. Election Procedures By Michael W. Traugott
http://usinfo.state.gov/products/pubs/election04/procedure.htm  In general, American voters have the opportunity to participate in more elections than the citizens of most other democracies. Some Americans may have five or six opportunities a year to vote, with each ballot filled with different choices for different offices at various levels of government. Because of its federal system, in which both the national government and the state governments have distinct powers, election day in the United States is actually the occasion for a series of simultaneous state and local elections, each held under separate administrative procedures.

Congressional Elections By John H. Aldrich
http://usinfo.state.gov/products/pubs/election04/congress.htm  ” While the media will focus most of their attention on the presidential election in 2004, Americans will be voting at the same time to elect thousands of others to a wide variety of offices. Elections for the U.S. Congress in particular may be as competitive and nearly as important as the presidential campaign. At present, the balance of power in the Congress between the two major political parties is quite close. Indeed, the Republicans hold only a 12-seat majority (out of 435) in the lower chamber, the House of Representatives, and just 51 of the 100 seats in the Senate, the upper chamber...”

The Polls, The Pundits, & The Elections of 2004 By John Zogby http://usinfo.state.gov/products/ pubs/election04/polls.htm Many Americans love political polls. Others love to hate them. Those who love polls enjoy the game of politics — who is ahead, who has a chance to win, who has the most popular position on health care or the economy. These "political junkies" closely watch the job performance ratings of presidents, governors, and mayors. And many voters just seem to like the idea of being connected to others in their community or in the nation. In an era when more and more Americans are atomized in work cubicles or long commutes to and from work, polls give citizens a sense of where they stand in relation to others as part of a national community.

The State of Campaign Finance By Joseph E. Cantor http://usinfo.state.gov/products/ pubs/election04/campaign$.htm  A prominent American politician once declared that "money is the mother's milk of politics." This is hardly surprising given that America's democratic form of government is based on free and open elections and a tradition of pluralism whereby competing interests vie to influence public policy. That characterization is especially apt today, as the size of the electorate necessitates reliance at least in elections for major office on mass media to communicate with voters. Broadcast time is an efficient but costly means of reaching mass audiences.

"Campaign Financing." By Cantor, Joseph E.  Congressional Research Service, Library of Congress, August  3, 2004. 18pp. http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/35082.pdf Concerns over financing federal elections have become a seemingly perennial aspect of our political system, long centered on the enduring issues of high campaign costs and reliance on interest groups for needed campaign Rising election costs had long fostered a sense in some quarters that spending was out of control, with too much time spent raising funds and elections “bought and sold.” Debate had also focused on the role of interest groups in campaign funding, especially through political action committees (PACs).
"Election '04: Off and Running” By Dunham, Richard S (WASHINGTON WATCH)" Business Week Online, Sept 2, 2003. http://www.businessweek.com/bwdaily/dnflash/sep2003/nf2003092_1665_db015.htm
With the Presidential primary season now getting into full gear, here are four dynamics that will determine Bush's re-election. So much for the conventional wisdom. What was supposed to be a slam-dunk 2004 reelection victory for President Bush has now turned into a genuine muddle. The economy has many voters and companies nervous, record federal deficits have fiscal mavens and Wall Street nervous, a bloody guerilla war in Iraq has everybody nervous -- and the new-found hero of the Left, former Vermont Governor Howard Dean, is enjoying a late-summer surge. 
Presidential Elections in the United States: A Primer. By Coleman, Kevin J., Joseph E. Cantor and Thomas H. Neale Congressional Research Service, Library of Congress, 2000, 53pp.http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/22616.pdf  ”This report describes the four stages of the presidential election process: the pre-nomination primaries and caucuses for selecting delegates to the national conventions; the national nominating conventions; the general election; and voting by members of the electoral college to choose the President and Vice President. The report will be updated again for the 2004 presidential election...” 

What's In Play?
Winning the States By Charlie Cook, Editor and Publisher of the Cook Political Report  http://usinfo. state.gov/journals/itdhr/1004/ijde/cook.htm
Because the president and vice president are selected by winner-take-all Electoral College votes in each state, and not by the national popular vote, candidates focus on winning strategic state contests. 
 
The Split Electorate By John Zogby, President and CEO, Zogby International http://usinfo.state.gov/ journals/itdhr/1004/ijde/zogby.htm  Polls indicate that American voters support the two major presidential candidates in nearly equal numbers. The small number of undecided or "swing" voters may be key to the election's outcome.
 

Congressional Elections By Thomas E. Mann, W. Averell Harriman Chair and Senior Fellow, Brookings Institution. http://usinfo.state.gov/journals/itdhr/ 1004/ijde/mann.htm  Control of Congress is important to a party's legislative agenda. A number of races for the Senate and House of Representatives are hotly contested this year. 


Financing the Campaigns  By Jan Baran, Partner, Wiley, Rein & Fielding LLP, Washington, DC http://usinfo.state.gov/journals/itdhr/1004/ijde/baran.htm The McCain-Feingold Law banned "soft" money, but the emergence of "527 committees" represents a new avenue for large contributors. 

The Mass Media By Montague Kern, Associate Professor in the Department of Journalism and Media Studies at Rutgers University. http://usinfo.state. gov/journals/itdhr/1004/ijde/kern.htm  American voters obtain most of their information about candidates and their positions from the mass media. The quality of campaign coverage and the tone of political ads are important factors in the election. 

Third Parties By L. Sandy Maisel, William R. Kenan, Jr. Professor of Government, Colby College http://usinfo.state.gov/journals/itdhr/1004/ijde/maisel.htm Despite the dominance of the Republican and Democratic parties, third parties often affect the outcome of U.S. elections. Ralph Nader is the only third party candidate in 2004 that might have a measurable impact. 


Where They Stand
Platform Positions By Republican Tucker Eskew, President of Eskew Strategies, and Democrat Marc Ginsberg, Chief Executive Officer of Northstar Equity Group and Chairman, Alliance For American Leadership. http://usinfo.state.gov/journals/ itdhr/1004/ijde/platforms.htm  Along with a candidate's personal appeal and party affiliation, a party's positions on the issues are deciding factors for voters. Here is a comparison of excerpts from the two major party platforms on key points with an overview of each by two experienced party activists. 

Debating the Issues  http://usinfo.state.gov/ journals/itdhr/1004/ijde/issues.htm  Televised debates between the candidates have become one of the most anticipated and influential aspects of the presidential campaign. 
How It Happens
Voting Day http://usinfo.state.gov/journals/itdhr/ 1004/ijde/day.htm What Americans do when they go to the polls. 
Voting Technology http://usinfo.state.gov/ journals/itdhr/1004/ijde/technology.htm The ways in which Americans cast their votes are changing. 

Ballots http://usinfo.state.gov/journals/itdhr/ 1004/ijde/ballots.htm Not only the names of candidates appear on an American ballot. 
The Electoral College http://usinfo.state.gov/ journals/itdhr/1004/ijde/college.htm  How the Electoral College elects the president and vice president. 
WEB SITES
Mega Sites

· Office of International Information Programs- U.S. Election 2004 http://usinfo.state.gov/dhr/ democracy/elections.html 

· Foreign Press Centers Campaign 2004 Web Links on topical issues relating to election 2004
http://www.fpc.gov/c9752.htm
· About Elections and Voting - U.S. Federal Election Commission http://www.fec.gov/
· Election Statistics - Office of the Clerk, U.S. House of Representatives http://clerk.house.gov/ members/electionInfo/elections.html
· Center for Responsive Politics
http://www.opensecrets.org/home 

· Center for Voting and Democracy
http://www.fairvote.org/
· Politics1 - Presidency2004
http://www.politics1.com/p2004.htm
· University of Michigan Documents Center: Elections http://www.lib.umich.edu/govdocs/ psusp.html#elec An extensive source of links to all aspects of the 2004 campaign and election, with background information 

· Congress.Org http://www.congress.org/ congressorg/e4/  Capitol Advantage. Includes issue positions of Presidential candidates, state information on voter registration and upcoming elections, and links to Congressional races by state, with background information available on Congressional voting records.

· Project Vote-Smart http://www.vote-smart.org
Comprehensive source for information on candidates and issues

· Campaigns & Elections http://www.campaignline. com Free access to limited articles and features from this non-partisan trade magazine on both the political and process sides of campaigns and elections. 

· Commission on Presidential Debates http://www.debates.org/ Nonprofit, nonpartisan corporation, sponsor of all the general election debates since 1988. Includes history, procedures and transcripts of these debates, and those prior to 1988, when available. 
· Gallup Poll -- Election History http://www.gallup.com/election2000/historicalsummary.htm Reports the standings and comparative strengths of U.S. presidential candidates from the elections of 1936 to 1996. 
Women and Elections

· Center for the American Woman and Politics
http://www.rci.rutgers.edu/~cawp
· League of Women Voters
http://www.lwv.org
Congressional Research Reports

· Campaign Activity by Churches: Legal Analysis of Houses of Worship Free Speech Restoration Act, H.R. 235 (108th Congress) http://fpc.state.gov/ documents/organization/23200.pdf
· Congressional Authority to Standarize National Election Procedures http://fpc.state.gov/ documents/organization/28096.pdf
· Election Projections: First Amendment Issues http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/22683.pdf
· Election Reform and Electronic Voting System (DREs): Analysis of Security Issues http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/31280.pdf
· Election of the President and Vice President by Congress: Contingent Election http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/22682.pdf
· Elections Reform: Overview and Issues http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/32809.pdf

Other Reports

· Election Reform: What's Changed, What Hasn't and Why - Electionline.org http://www.electionline.org/site/docs/pdf/ERIP_AR2004.pdf

Campaign Finance

· Campaign Finance - Hoover Institution http://www.campaignfinancesite.org/
· Campaign Finance Institute - Campaign Finance eGuide http://www.cfinst.org/eguide/
· Campaign Finance Law Resources - U.S. Federal Election Commission http://www.fec.gov/finance_law.html
· Center for Responsive Politics' Open Secrets http://www.opensecrets.org/
· Election Commission Reviews Advocacy Group Committees http://usinfo.state.gov/dhr/ Archive/2004/May/06-82426.html
· Financing Presidential Election Campaigns - by Herbert E. Alexander http://usinfo.state.gov/journals/itdhr/0996/ijde/alex.htm
· Glossary of Campaign Finance Reform Terms - Common Cause http://www.commoncause.org/issue_agenda/glossary.htm
· Political Party Finance under BCRA (Bipartisan Campaign Reform Act): An Initial Assessment http://www.brookings.edu/dybdocroot/views/papers/corrado20040311_paper.pdf
· PoliticalMoneyLine Guide to Presidential Races - 2004 Presidential Race http://www.tray.com/cgi-win/indexhtml.exe?MBF=pres
· Supreme Court Decision - McConnell v Federal Election Commision, Dec. 10, 2003 http://caselaw.lp.findlaw.com/cgi-bin/getcase.pl?court=US&navby=case&vol=000&invol=02-1674
· Campaign Finance Reform: A Legal Analysis of Issue & Express Advocacy  CRS Report http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/22690.pdf
· Campaign Finance in the 2000 Federal Elections: Overview & Estimates of the flow of money  CRS Report http://fpc.state.gov/documents/ organization/22896.pdf
· Campaign Finance: Brief Overview of McConnell v. FEC  CRS Report http://fpc.state.gov/documents/ organization/22686.pdf
· Campaign Finance: Constitutional and Legal Issues of Soft Money - CRS Report http://fpc.state.gov/ documents/organization/29689.pdf
· Campaign Financing  CRS Report http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/28093.pdf
· Campaign Finance Information Center
http://www.campaignfinance.org/about.html
Investigative Reporters and Editors. Missouri School of Journalism. Resources that help journalists and the public follow the campaign money trail -- on the national, state and local levels.  

· Campaign Finance Institute http://www.cfinst.org/
A nonprofit, bipatisan institute provides extensive resources and links to track legislation, disclosure reports, and areas for improvement in campaign financing.
Political Parties

· Bush/Cheney 04
http://www.georgewbush.com/
· Democratic National Committee
http://www.democrats.org/
· Democratic Party Platform for 2004
http://a9.g.akamai.net/7/9/8082/v001/www.democrats.org/pdfs/ 2004platform.pdf
· Kerry-Edwards 2004
http://www.johnkerry.com/index.html
· Nader-Camejo 2004
http://www.votenader.org/
· Republican National Committee
http://www.rnc.org/
· Republican Party Platform for 2004
http://msnbcmedia.msn.com/i/msnbc/Sections/News/Politics/ Conventions/RNC-2004platform.pdf
Caucuses and Primaries

· Background Information http://fpc.state.gov/fpc/26221.htm
· Foreign Press Center Briefings http://fpc.state.gov/fpc/26223.htm
· Iowa Caucuses http://fpc.state.gov/fpc/26222.htm
· New Hampshire Primary http://fpc.state.gov/fpc/26225.htm
· South Carolina Primary http://fpc.state.gov/fpc/27981.htm

Conventions

· Boston - Site of the 2004 Democratic National Convention http://www.boston04.com/
· Conventions - Background Information http://www.gwu.edu/%7Eaction/2004/chrnconv.html
· Democratic National Convention 2004 http://www.dems2004.org/
· Republican National Convention 2004 http://www.2004nycgop.org/
Voting

· Absentee Voting - Encyclopedia Americana http://ap.grolier.com/article?assetid=0001630-00&templatename=/article/article.html
· Election Reform Briefing - Securing the Vote http://www.electionline.org/site/docs/pdf/EB7_new.pdf
· Elections - Electronic Voting Offers Opportunities and Presents Challenges http://www.gao.gov/new.items/d04766t.pdf
· Frequently Asked Questions About Voting System Standards - U.S. Federal Election Commission http://www.fec.gov/pages/faqsvss.htm
· Voting Machine - Encyclopedia Americana http://ap.grolier.com/article?assetid=0406930-00&templatename=/article/article.html
· Voting and Registration - U.S. Census Bureau http://www.census.gov/population/www/socdemo/voting.html
· Election Reform and Electronic Voting Systems (DREs): Analysis of Security Issues - CRS Report http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/31342.pdf
· Internet Voting - CRS Report http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/22714.pdf
· The Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting Act: Background & Issues - CRS Report http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/22715.pdf
Electoral College

· Distribution of Electoral Votes - U.S. Federal Election Commission http://www.fec.gov/pages/elecvote.htm
· How the Electoral College Works - U.S. Federal Election Commission http://www.fec.gov/pages/ecworks.htm
· The Electoral College by William C. Kimberling, Deputy Director, FEC Office of Election Admin http://www.fec.gov/pdf/eleccoll.pdf 
· U.S. Electoral College - U.S. Archives & Records Administration. http://www.archives.gov/federal_register/electoral_college/electoral_college.html
· The Electoral College: Reform Proposals in the 107th Congress CRS Report September 25, 2003 http://fpc.state.gov/documents/organization/28091.pdf
· The American Electoral College by Ellis Katz, Temple University http://usinfo.state.gov/ usa/infousa/politics/eleccol/katz.htm
· The Electoral College: http://www.fec.gov/ pages/ecmenu2.htm Federal Election Commission. Discussions on how the Electoral College works and its history.

· The Electoral College: How It Works in Contemporary Presidential Elections
 Congressional Research Service report, September 28, 2004, details workings of the Electoral College. http://fpc.state.gov/ documents/organization/36763.pdf  

· A Procedural Guide to the Electoral College
National Archives and Records Administrative.
http://www.archives.gov/federal_register/electoral_college/electoral_college.html 

Media Sites

· ABC News Political Unit http://abcnews.go.com/ sections/politics/TheNote/TheNote.html
· Campaign Advertisements (Bush and Kerry)
http://pcl.stanford.edu/campaigns/campaign2004/index.html
· CBS News: Campaign 2004
http://www.cbsnews.com/sections/politics/main250.shtml
· Cook Political Report http://www.cookpolitical.com/
· CNN: America Votes
http://www.cnn.com/ELECTION/2004/
· C-SPAN: Election 2004 http://www.capwiz.com/c-span/e4/  Campaign 2004 coverage, including candidates, contributions, and the election calendar.

· Fox News Channel http://www.foxnews.com/
· New York Times—2004 Election Guide
http://www.nytimes.com/packages/html/politics/ 2004_ELECTIONGUIDE_GRAPHIC/index.html
· MSNBC Decision 2004
http://www.msnbc.msn.com/id/3032553/
· New York Times: Campaigns http://www.nytimes.com/pages/politics/ campaign/  News and resources on current elections.

· Voice of America: Road to the White House
http://www.voanews.com/specialreport.cfm?objectid=6B65B21A-4280-4D94-87D90E84B6298834
· Washington Post Elections 2004
http://www.washingtonpost.com/wp-dyn/politics/elections/2004/
· Washington Times
http://www.washtimes.com/national/
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The U.S. Department of State assumes no responsibility for the content and availability of the resources listed above. Links to all were active as of October 18, 2004.
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